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Federal M ne Safety and Health Review Commi ssion (FMS. HRC)
O fice of Adm nistrative Law Judges

SECRETARY OF LABOR Cvil Penalty Proceedi ng
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADM NI STRATI ON ( MSHA) , Docket No. HOPE 78-690-P
PETI TI ONER A/ O No. 46-01576- 02021
V. [tmann No. 3 M ne

| TMVANN COAL COMPANY,
RESPONDENT

DECI SI ON APPROVI NG SETTLEMENT
AND
ORDERI NG PAYMENT OF CI VI L PENALTY

Appear ances: John H O Donnell, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor, U S
Department of Labor, for Petitioner
Karl T. Skrypak, Esqg., Consolidation Coal Conpany,
Pi tt sburgh, Pennsylvania, for Respondent.

Bef ore: Judge Cook

A petition for assessnent of civil penalty was filed
pursuant to section 110(a) of the Federal Mne Safety and Heal th
Act of 1977 (Act) in the above-captioned proceeding. An answer
was filed and a prehearing order was issued. Subsequent thereto,
various notions and rel ated docunents were filed requesting
approval of a settlenent and dism ssal of the proceeding. The
statements contained in these filings are set forth bel ow

Information as to the six statutory criteria contained in
section 110 of the Act has been submitted. This information has
provided a full disclosure of the nature of the settlenent and
the basis for the original determ nation. Thus, the parties have
conmplied with the intent of the law that settlenment be a matter
of public record.

An agreed settlenent has been reached between the parties in
the amount of $229. The assessnent for the alleged violations
was $310.

The all eged violations and the settlenent are identified as
fol | ows:

Noti ce or Dat e 30 CFR Standard Assessnent Sett| ement
Order No.
7- 0056 4/ 12/ 77 70.100( b) $90 $9

7-0139 7122177 75. 200 220 220
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The initial nmotion to approve settlenment and disnmiss was filed by
the Petitioner on January 2, 1979, proposing to settle Notice No.
7-0056, April 12, 1977, 30 CFR 70.100(b) (alleged respirable dust
violation) for $9 and Order No. 7-0139, July 22, 1977, 30 CFR
75.200 (alleged roof violation) for $110. On January 31, 1979,
an order was issued indicating that the proposed settlenent for
the all eged respirable dust violation could be approvedl, but
that the information contained in the record was insufficient for
pur poses of determning that the public interest would be
adequately protected by approval of the settlenent for the
al | eged roof violation. Accordingly, the request for approval of
settl enent was denied. The notion set forth the follow ng reason
in support of the settlement of the alleged respirabl e dust
violation: "(FOOTNOTE 1). The respirable dust standard violation %(3)5Cis
covered by the bl anket agreenent approved by Judge Kennedy in My
of 1978."

The Petitioner filed its second notion for approval of
settlenent on July 19, 1979, reiterating the previously submtted
settl enent proposal for the alleged respirable dust violation
but proposing to settle the alleged roof violation for $220. On
Septenber 12, 1979, an order, simlar to the January 31, 1979,
order, was issued denying the Petitioner's request for approval
of settlenent.

Since the alleged roof violation has been the sole
i npedi ment to a disposition of this case short of an evidentiary
hearing, it is appropriate to set forth the allegations
pertaining to it contained in the petition for assessnent of
civil penalty. The order of withdrawal, a copy of which
acconpani ed the petition, states the foll ow ng:

Loose, inadequately supported roof and | oose

over hangi ng brows were observed at numerous | ocations
al ong the sugar run track haul ageway from survey
station spad 3977 inby for approximtely 650 feet to an
area near station spad 4260. Several areas along the
above- nmenti oned haul ageway were observed where bolt
spaci ng exceeded 10 feet and sone of the installed
bolts were inaffective due to sloughing. The ribs in
three fallen areas were not supported. Numerous
crossbars (6 inches by 8 inches by varying | engths)
installed in the affected area were broken and/ or
sagged (to what appeared to be a maxi num | oad) due to
excessi ve wei ght. Four men were working approxi mately
200 feet inby the beginning of the affected area and
the operator stated that they had closed the area for
rehabi litation purposes; however, no danger signs were
observed and the conditions were not listed in the
preshift exam ner's book on this date.

On Cctober 5, 1979, the Respondent filed a notion to approve
settlenent and dismss stating, in part, as follows:
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1. On or about Decenber 28, 1978, the original notion to approve
settlenent was filed by MBHA. On January 31, 1979, the Judge
i ssued a deci sion di sapproving the proposed settlenment. Since
then the parties reviewed the entire matter in light of the
Judge' s disapproval. They believed that a second proposed
settl enent woul d have been an appropriate disposition of the
case. However, they recogni zed that reasonable nen mght differ
and there mght be nore than one proper disposition for any case.
Therefore, on July 18, 1979, a different settl ement was proposed.

The Judge, in his decision disapproving the origina
proposed settlenent, stated that the proposed
settlenent of the alleged violation of 30 CFR 70. 100( b)
could be approved as proposed. Therefore, the second
nmotion dealt only with the settlenent of the all eged
violation of 30 CFR 75.200. The Judge di sapproved the
second settl ement on Septenber 12, 1979.

This, the third proposed settlenment of the alleged
violation of 75.200 is for $220, i.e., 100 percent of

t he amount proposed by the O fice of Assessnents.

2. This ampunt is proper. (At any hearing the
operator woul d produce testinmony that only nen worKking
to correct the condition went inby the beginning of the
affected area.) MBHA could produce no testinony to the
contrary. The inspectors who signed the Order would
testify that the miners they observed i nby were working
to correct the condition

3. Respondent is a |arge operator

4. Payment of the proposed assessnent will have no
ef fect on Respondent's ability to remain in business.

5. Respondent's history of previous violations has
been submitted in prior proposals by MSHA

6. Respondent denonstrated good faith in attenpting to
achi eve rapid conpliance.

7. The alleged violation was the result of ordinary
negl i gence.

8. The alleged violation was not serious under the
Ci rcumst ances.

9. The previously submtted Proposed Assessnent and
I nspector's Commrent Sheets are hereby incorporated by
ref erence

NEW MATTER

10. The mine was on vacation fromJuly 3, 1977,
t hrough July 17, 1977.
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11. Shortly after vacation, managenent becane aware of the roof
and rib conditions in the general area from spad 3977 through
spad 4260 al ong the Sugar Run Track Haul ageway. Managenent does
not agree that the entire area presented a problem There were
only a few areas where work had to be done.

12. Management closed what it considered to be the

affected area on or about July 19, 1979. No persons
except those authorized by the operator to enter the
place to work at elimnating the condition travel ed

into the subject area.

13. A plan was posted describing the rehabilitation
wor k bei ng done.

14. On Wednesday, July 20, 1979, Inspector Sanmmy Bel

i nspected the Itmann No. 3 B Mne. Before the

i nspector went underground, Superintendent den

Bl ankenship informed himthat an area of the Sugar Run
Track Haul ageway had been closed for repairs. Only
experienced and certified people were working in the
area under the supervision of a certified foreman. The
track was closed not being used GsicE for any reason

I nspector Bell and Lee Stewart, mine foreman, travel ed
to the subject area. Wen he returned to the surface,
M. Bell discussed the situation with Superintendent

Bl ankenship and M ne Foreman Stewart. |nspector Bel
stated that he knew the area was closed and work was
al ready being perforned to rehabilitate the area.
However, M. Bell said that he intended to discuss the
situation with the MSHA roof control experts at his
office. |Inspector Bell left the m ne wthout issuing
any notices or orders in the subject area.

15. Two days later, on Friday, July 22, 1977,

I nspector Bell returned to the mne foll owed by

I nspectors Charles Hanbric and Hubert MKi nney. All

i nspectors were told by Superintendent Bl ankenship that
the area was closed and that work was al ready being
performed to correct the condition. The three

i nspectors, Superintendent Bl ankenship and M ne Forenman
Stewart traveled to the subject area. After observing
t he subject area for about thirty (30) mnutes the

I nspectors verbally issued a closure order. They cane
to the surface and after calling their MSHA supervisor
wrote the subject 104(a) O der

16. The allegation that nen were working two hundred
(200) feet inby the beginning of the affected area is
totally false. The operator had already rehabilitated
the first two hundred (200) feet of the area to the
poi nt where the men were working. A difference of

opi nion arose as to whether nore work was needed on
certain brows found outby where the nen were worKking.
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17. There were no other crews worki ng anywhere near the area of

t he m ne.

18. Since the operator had conplied with the roof
control plan by posting a plan for the rehabilitation
work, it did not feel that hangi ng a danger sign and
maki ng an entry in the pre-shift exam nation book were
necessary. MSHA agreed with this argunent at the tinme
or they woul d have issued an additional notice of a
violation of 30 CF.R Section 75.303.

19. Respondent strenuously contends that a violation
of Section 75.202 may have existed but that alleged
violation was certainly not an inmnently dangerous
condition as evidenced by the fact that Inspector Bel
hinself permtted the sanme conditions, practices and
procedures to exist for over two (2) days fromthe tine
he first observed them

Paragraph Nos. 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 and 9 nerely restate the
justifications advanced by the Petitioner in its July 19, 1979,
motion. |In paragraph No. 8, supra, Respondent classifies the
al l eged violation as "not serious under the circunstances,"”
whereas the Petitioner's July 19, 1979, notion classified it as
"noderately serious in the circunstances.”

On Cctober 18, 1979, the Petitioner filed a notion
requesting that the Respondent's settlenent notion be approved,
stating, in part, as foll ows:

The Respondent, Itmann Coal Conpany, has noved t hat
104(a) Oder of Wthdrawal No. 1 SRB/HM SRB (7-0139)
whi ch issued on July 22, 1977, citing 30 CFR 75. 200, be
approved by Respondent's paynment of $220.00 (which
anmount was received by the Ofice of Assessnents on
August 7, 1979). The paynent is in the sane amount as
t hat proposed by the Assessnent O ficer, see Form
AO-21c attached, which shows the points assessed
pursuant to 30 CFR 100.3 in each of fifteen categories
by whi ch the proposed civil penalty of $220.00 was
determined. The Ofice of the Solicitor by reference
adopts the allegations and attachnents contained in its
previous two notions for approval of settlenment, which
show t he Respondent is a | arge operator, payment wll
have no effect on its ability to remain in business,
that there have been 478 previously paid violations and
34 paid 30 CFR 75.200 violations, that a normal degree
of good faith was denonstrated in abating the condition
after the order of w thdrawal issued, that the
violation was the result of ordinary negligence, and,
in view of the fact that the area had been cl osed, that
the violation was only noderately serious.

The Office of the Solicitor notes the new materi al
subm tted by the Respondent and deens it additiona
reasons why the settlenent in the anountof $220.00



shoul d be approved as being a reasonabl e anount under
the facts shown.
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On Novenber 27, 1979, an order was issued noting that the |ast
par agraph in the above-quoted passage appeared to be an adoption
of the "new matter"” submtted by the Respondent on Cctober 5,
1979.

The order stated that:

[i]f the Petitioner intends this as an adoption, then
the Petitioner is ORDERED to file with the undersi gned
Admi ni strative Law Judge, within 20 days of the date of
this order, an affirmative statenent that it adopts the
"new matter" submitted by the Respondent on COctober 5,
1979, as an accurate statenent of facts and as
addi ti onal reasons in support of the proposed

settl enent.

On Decenber 5, 1979, the Petitioner responded to the
November 27, 1979, order as foll ows:

The undersigned attorney on behalf of the Mne Safety
and Health Admi nistration (MSHA) responds to the Order
that MSHA either expressly adopt or reject the various
Respondent's "new matter"” quoted in the Order as
fol | ows:

1. The Order quotes a statenent by the Petitioner
readi ng, "The O fice of the Solicitor notes the new
material submitted by the Respondent and deens it
addi ti onal reasons why the settlenent in the anount of
$220 shoul d be approved as being a reasonabl e amunt
under the facts shown." This statenent was intended
only as acknow edgenent that at a hearing Respondent's
wi tnesses would testify as alleged in support of the
al | egati ons desi gnated by the Respondent as "new
matter"” so it is appropriate to consider in approving
settlenent. The Petitioner had already stated its
position in two notions to have the settl enment
approved, and had indicated in a tel ephone conference
call that there was little nore it could offer. The
Respondent at that time offered to reveal its position
and subsequently by the "new matter” did so.

2. Federal Coal M ne Inspectors Charles D. Hanbric,
Jr., and Herbert (not Hubert) MKinney have each
conmmuni cated by tel ephone nore than once with the
undersi gned attorney and we have discussed in depth the
quoted material in the above nentioned Order, and the
undersigned attorney has read to each Inspector the
Response to each statenment and MSHA' s comment which the
I nspectors have agreed is, in their respective opinion
true. Sammy R Bell is a forner Federal coal mne

i nspector no | onger enployed by the Federal Government.
M. Bell is believed to reside in Crab Orchard, West
Virginia, and so he should be available as a witness in
response to an appropriate subpoena. Neverthel ess,
since M. Bell is not a
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present enpl oyee of MSHA, the Ofice of the Solicitor has at
present only office records and the recollection of Messrs.
Hanbric and McKi nney and ot her MSHA personnel to devel op M.
Bell's position concerning the issuance of the subject order of
wi t hdr awnal .

3. Brief Statenment of Facts: (According to Inspectors
Hanbric and McKinney): There had been a substanti al
unpl anned roof fall in the underground bitum nous coa
m ne and Respondent's personnel, as a result, had
haul ed away a substantial anmount debris. The area was
along a rail haul ageway used, or to be used, at |east
after the unplanned roof fall as a haul ageway for
supplies only. Inspector Bell had briefly observed the
begi nning of the area where the unplanned roof fall has
occurred [sic] a few days prior to July 22, 1977 (the
day the subject order of w thdrawal issued), and had
been concerned with the manner in which the roof had
been and was planned to be rehabilitated. There
appears to have been a di scussion between forner

I nspector Bell and unknown Managenent personnel in
which the latter justified the roof rehabilitation plan
posted for the reasons that only supplies would be
haul ed on the travelway and m ners had verbally been
ordered to stay out of the area. M. Bell took no
action at that tine based upon his cursory view of the
scene, but obviously he was concerned because he, upon
returning to the MBHA O fice, through office channels,
requested a roof control specialist be assigned to
return with himto the mne while an inspection was
made of the entire area affected by the unpl anned roof
fall. 1In response to fornmer Inspector Bell's request,
M. Hanbric and M. MKinney (roof control specialists)
returned with M. Bell to the mne on July 22, 1977,
where a careful inspection of the entire area taking
several hours (not thirty mnutes, as suggested by the
Respondent) was made by the three inspectors. The

I nspectors are | ooking for, but have not |ocated, a

m ne map whi ch woul d show t he di stance of the area
affected by the roof fall but suggests that as much as
1,000 feet was involved. The Inspectors were al arned
to observe that there was a power center at the rear of
the area where the roof was substandard. Under certain
conditions mne personnel must go to the power center
to i nspect equi pnent and possibly reset breakers and
perform ot her services. True, the power center can be
reached by traveling in a long loop so it can be
entered fromthe rear, but this route is so much | onger
and nore difficult than passing under the area where

t he roof was substandard that all three MSHA inspectors
were concerned that mne personnel would use the

haul ageway to reach the power center instead of using

t he haul ageway only to haul supplies as the Mne
Qperator insisted it would be used. The Respondent was
only
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opening up the area by renoving debris and taking down roof where
necessary so track haul age equi prent coul d pass, insisting that
that was all that was necessary since the area would only be used
to haul supplies. The three inspectors required that | oose brows
be supported by roof bolts or taken down, and ot her work, as
described in the order of wthdrawal, be done. W enphasize that
M. Bell had not previously inspected the area, other than
superficially, before the three inspectors on July 22, 1977, went
over every bit of it. The three inspectors were unaninous in the
opi nion that the roof and rib conditions observed by them during
the inspection constituted an i mm nent danger. The area had not
been posted with a danger sign although the m ners had verbally
been told to stay away fromthe area unless authorized to work on
the roof rehabilitation. The three inspectors verbally issued a
[104(a) order of withdrawal after conpleting their inspection.
Then, the inspectors returned to the surface where a di scussion
was had with m ne personnel who, although recognizing that the
roof presently posed a danger, were of the opinion that the
verbal orders issued to prevent enployees fromentering the area
wer e adequat e and no danger sign need be posted, and Managenent
was of the opinion that its posted plan to rehabilitate the area
was sufficient. The Inspectors and MSHA take the position that,
since the roof and ribs were admttedly inadequately supported,
there was a violation of 30 CFR 75.200 in the absence of
dangering off the area. A verbal order to prevent entrance to
the area is only effective as to mners who hear the order, so a
physical sign is necessary warning mners to stay away. In this
connection, the two Inspectors (Messrs. Hanbric and MKi nney)
agree that an experienced mner should have been able to | ook at
the m ne roof after the fall and know enough not to continue
under it. The witnesses agree that the roof control plan to
rehabilitate the area was posted as required by the roof control
pl an whenever there had been an unpl anned roof fall; however,
MSHA is uncertain as to the relevancy of this fact since the
Respondent has not been charged with violating this part of the
roof control plan

MSHA' s Position on Each Allegation Under "New Matter" and CQur

Comment :

4. Responding to paragraph nunbered ten of
Respondent's Modtion, Inspectors Hanbric and MKi nney
state they have no exact recollection but the

all egation is probably true.

COMMENT: A miners' vacation is nornally taken about
this time of the year.

5.  Concerni ng paragraph nunbered el even of
Respondent's Mdtion, the Inspectors agree that the
al l egations therein are
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true except the two MSHA enpl oyees consider that several areas
rather than "a few areas"” had to have work done, and refer to the
order of withdrawal for a description of what had to be done.

COMMENT: The difference of opinion appears to be a

di fference of opinion as to whether the area had to be
made safe for pedestrian traffic or nerely safe as a
haul ageway for supplies. There does not appear to be
much di fference between the parties as to the physica
condition of the area, nerely a difference of opinion
anong experts as to what was needed to be done.

6. Concerni ng paragraph nunbered twel ve, MSHA agrees

t hat Managenent had verbally ordered that no one except
aut hori zed personnel enter the area, and we do not know
when or how that order issued, so the allegations are
true.

COMMENT: The area had not been dangered off and MSHA
urges that, in view of the dangerous condition of the
roof and ribs, a danger sign must be posted to prevent
a violation of 30 CFR 75.200. Furthernore, MSHA is
concerned that the verbal order would not preclude
persons from approachi ng the power station by traveling
under the roof area under discussion

7. Concerning the allegation contained in paragraph
nunbered thirteen, as stated previously, MSHA agrees
that such a plan was required after a roof fall and it
had been posted. The allegation is true.

COMMENT:  Posting of such a plan would not be in lieu
of posting a danger sign.

8. Concerning the allegations in paragraph nunbered

fourteen of Respondent's Modtion, because M. Bell is no
| onger a CGovernnent enpl oyee we were unable to di scuss
the matter with M. Bell. However, the allegations are

supported in part by certain MSHA records, and we
believe the allegations are probably true.

9. Concerning the allegations in paragraph nunbered
fifteen, the two Inspectors are uncertain as to what
day M. Bell first saw the area of the unplanned roof
fall, but agree it could have been July 20, 1977. The
three inspectors went over the entire area so it took
several hours rather than thirty m nutes. The other

al l egations in the paragraph are true.
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COMMENT: The reason the inspectors tel ephoned the MSHA office
for advice was because, although they agreed the condition
constituted an i mm nent danger, they were uncertain whether to
follow through with what they had verbally told Respondent's
personnel underground and issue a witten [104(a) inm nent danger
order of withdrawal or instead to issue an order of w thdrawal
under M03(f) of the 1969 Coal M ne Act since there had been an
unpl anned roof fall which is an accident. The three inspectors
were properly instructed by M. Bell's supervisor that where an

i nspector considers a condition of inmnent danger exists, it is
mandatory that a [104 (a) order of w thdrawal issue even though
the situation al so neets sone other provision of the Act (such as
103(f)). Thus, the three inspectors drafted and each signed and
i ssued the subject order of wi thdrawal.

10. Concerni ng paragraph nunbered sixteen of the
Motion, the two inspectors insist that they observed
four mners working approxi mately 200 feet inby the
begi nning of the area affected by the unpl anned roof
fall, so MSHA denies all but the |ast sentence of that
par agr aph

COMMENT: The Inspectors were dissatisfied with sonme of
t he work whi ch Management consi dered conpl eted, which
woul d be the reason for the above di sagreenent. The

I nspect ors observed | oose bolts and | oose brows (see
order of withdrawal) and insisted the sane be
corrected. Managenent insisted that since the area
woul d be used only to haul supplies, such work was
unnecessary.

11. The allegation in paragraph nunbered sevent een of
the Motion is true.

COMMENT:  Neverthel ess, the two I nspectors were
concerned that at sone tine mners nay travel the
haul ageway to obtain access to the power center, so
they insisted that places dangerous to pedestrian
traffic in the area be corrected.

12. Concerni ng paragraph nunbered ei ghteen, NSHA
agrees, as stated previously, that the required plan to
rehabilitate the area where the unpl anned roof fall had
occurred had been posted. MSHA agrees that
Respondent' s personnel did sincerely believe that it
was not necessary to post a danger sign and nake an
entry in the preshift exam nation book, but the opinion
of Respondent's personnel was erroneous and contrary to
aw. MSHA denies the allegation or reasoning of the
second sentence of paragraph nunbered ei ghteen
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COMMENT:  Even though the conditions were | ess than an i mm nent
danger, the fact that dangerous roof and rib conditions existed
caused there to be a violation of 30 CFR 75. 200 si nce no danger
sign was posted. This is true even though the condition was
bei ng corrected before the inspection. Concerning the second
sentence of paragraph nunbered ei ghteen, inspectors often have a
choi ce of mandatory safety standards that can appropriately be
cited as a result of a particular condition or practice observed,
and sonetinmes an inspector will cite only the standard of
standards nost pertinent or best supported by what the inspector
personal |y observed. Since the three Inspectors did not have
personal know edge as to when the mne roof fell, the Inspectors
cited 30 CFR 75. 200 based on the conditions which each inspector
had personally seen rather than the circunstantial evidence which
woul d be required under the circunstances to support 30 CFR
75.303. Furthernore, a 30 CFR 75.303 violation would not have
been an i mm nent danger. The failure to cite 30 CFR 75.303 is
not evidence that the Inspectors did not consider that a danger
sign nmust be posted. The Respondent's reasoning |lacks validity.

13. Concerni ng paragraph nunbered ni neteen, NSHA
deni es the allegations contained therein.

COMMENT:  Qoviously Inspector Bell did not recognize
that a condition of imm nent danger existed when he
observed the area earlier, but he did not proceed far
enough into the area to recogni ze the potential of the
problem M. Bell nmerely saw enough to recogni ze that
a MSHA nmine roof control specialist should inspect the
area, and then he left. Wether there was a 30 CFR
75.202 violation is not relevant to this proceedi ng.
This is not a face area or near a face area, and even
the adm nistrative | aw judges are divided on the issue
as to whether other than the first sentence of 30 CFR
75.202 relates to a mne area other than "at or near
each working face.”" There was a violation of 30 CFR
75. 200 which requires that the roof and ribs of al
active underground roadways, travelways, and worKking
pl aces shall be supported or otherw se controlled
adequately to protect persons fromfalls of the roof or
ribs. QCbviously, Respondent recognized the roof and
ribs in this area were inadequately supported or the
verbal order requiring the mners to not enter without
aut hori zati on would not have issued, but the area
shoul d have been dangered off so there is a violation
of the mandatory safety standard. Considering the

speed with which a | oose brow can fall, we consider
there was an inm nent danger if pedestrian traffic were
present, not otherwise. In this connection we note

that the Respondent's personnel did assure the
I nspectors that the area would only be used to hau
suppl i es, but



~2145
the I nspectors were not satisfied because of the location of the
power center and required additional work to be done.

14. The Ofice of the Solicitor suggests that $220.00
is a reasonabl e ambunt to assess as a civil penalty for
t hese reasons:

a. The Respondent is correct that there is no i mm nent
danger in the event there is no pedestrian traffic, and
Respondent insists that the haul ageway would only be
used to haul supplies.

b. MBHA inspectors admit that the power center can be
reached by a route other than passing under the
substandard roof.

c. The Respondent was attenpting to correct the
condition before any inspector observed it.

d. There was a question between MSHA experts and
Managenent experts as to whether the work was being
done properly; however, the fact that Inspector Bel

had to obtain the aid of MSHA roof control specialists
denonstrates that the probl emwas somewhat conplicated
and lent itself to a diffence of opinion anong experts.

e. The Respondent was sincere in its erroneous belief
that the verbal instructions to stay out of the area
sufficed, w thout a danger sign

The reasons gi ven above by counsel for the parties for the
proposed settl enent have been reviewed in conjunction with the
informati on submtted as to the six statutory criteria contained
in section 110 of the Act. After according this informtion due
consi deration, it has been found to support the proposed
settlenent. It therefore appears that a disposition approving
the settlenment will adequately protect the public interest.

CORDER

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED that the proposed settlenment, as
outlined above, be, and hereby is, APPROVED

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED t hat the Respondent be, and hereby is
ASSESSED a civil penalty in the agreed-upon anmount of $229.

Since the Respondent has paid the agreed upon settl enment
amount of $220 for the alleged violation of 30 CFR 75.200, IT IS
FURTHER ORDERED that the petition for assessnent of civil penalty
be, and hereby is, DISM SSED as relates to such all eged
viol ation.
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IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED t hat the Respondent pay a civil penalty in

t he agreed-upon armount of $9 for the alleged violation of 30 CFR
70.100(b) within 30 days of the date of this decision if such
anount has not been paid to date.

John F. Cook
Admi ni strative Law Judge
AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
FOOTNOTES START HERE
~FOOTNOTE_ONE
1 The attached copy of a decision in Secretary of Labor,
M ne Safety and Heal th Adm nistration v. Consolidation Coal
Conpany, Docket No. MORG 78-339-P (Septenber 29, 1978) sets forth
t he reasoning for such settlenent approval.



